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J.P.SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED
& SUBSIDIARIES

1 SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED

T NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

T The One Hundred and Forty Fourth (144‘**) Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held in the Boardroom of John Fernandes Ltd 49 - 52 Aeeess Road,
Georgetown, on July 1, 2022, at 4:30 pm for the following purposes:-

'fo receive the Report of the Directors & the Audited Financial Statements for
the year ended December 2021 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

To consider and (if thought fit) pass the following resolution,
fhat the Financial Statements for year ended 3 December 2021 and

the Report of the Directors thereon be and arc hereby adopted”.

To consider the declaration of a Final Dividend of $3.00 per share by the Board
in addition to the Interim Dividend already declared and paid by the Board of
$4.00 per share and (if thought fit) pass the following resolution:-

“That the Interim Dividend of $4.00 per share, already paid be confirmed,
and that a final dividend of $3.00 per share as recommended by the
Directors in respect of the year ended 3 December 2021 be approved”.

To elect Directors in place of those retiring by rotation.

3'o fix the remuneration of the Directors.

(a)

(b)
I.

(c)

1.

(d)

(e)

T

1

T

1

1

1

1

To appoint Auditors and the Directors be authorised to fix their remuneration,

'fo transact any other business of an Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s by laws 69-75, a member is entitled to
appoint a “Proxy” to attend and vote on his/her behalf A “Proxy” need not be
member.

(01

(g)
T

a
T

T
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BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

fV

T Roger Ferreira
Company Secretary

T
DATE: June 9, 2022

T
ri -OSURE OF SHARES REGISTER

T
The shares register of the above-named Company will be elosed from

June 17 - July 1, 2022, both days inelusive.
'T
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J. P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED/,*n

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby submit their report together with the audited financial statement for

the year ended 3 December, 2021.f
TUIWOVER «& PROFITABILITY

The group turnover increased by 5.04% from G$5.894B in 2020 to G$6.191B in 2021.
There was a group profit after tax of G$286.308 in 2021 as compared to GS289.043M in
2020 a decrease of G$2.735M.t
The company’s first subsidiary JPS Trading Inc. recorded a Total Comprehensive Income
Profit aftertax of G$151.170M in 2021 as against G$160.51 IM in 2020 while its second
subsidiary Value 4 U Inc. recorded a Total Comprehensive profit after tax of G$44.902M
in 2021 as compared to G$34.789M in 2020.

Taxation charged to the group for the year increased by 3.72% from G$170.059M in
2020 to G$176.385M in 2021.

1

1

1
mVIDENDS

1
We propose a final dividend of $3.00 per share, which, taken with the interim dividend of
$4.00 per share already paid brings the total dividend per share for 2021 to $7.00. If
approved, the total dividend payout for 2021 will be G$133.03 IM.1
niRECTORS

1
Directors Messrs A. C. Fernandes and P. C. Fernandes, in accordance with the

Company’s By Laws, retire by rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for
election.

rc-

!

AUDITORS

1
'fhe Auditors, Messrs TSD Lai & Company have retired as required by the Company’s
By Laws and offer themselves for re-appointment.

1
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

G$
C. J. Fernandes, CCIi, A.A
L. P. Baker
P. N. de Grool
P. C. Fernandes
A. C. Fernandes

Messrs: 144,000
96,000
96,000
96,000
96.000
528.000

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

I SHARES IN J.P.S & Co. Ltd.

ORDINARY SHARI'S AT NO. PAR VALUE

J.F. Ltd. B.F. Ltd.

■? '

Messrs: C. J. Fernandes, CCH, A.A
L. P. Baker
P. N. de Grool
P. C. Fernandes
A. C. Fernandes

7,560 1,792

7,560
7,560
7,560

1,574
1,520
1,520

1
1 All of these shares are held beneficially.

No Director held shares in Value 4 U Inc., JPS Trading Inc., and Guyana Biscuit
(Holdings) Ltd as at December 31, 2021.

!

f INTER COMPANY LEASE AGREEMENTS

John Fernandes Limited leases 53 - 55 Water Street and 49 - 52 Access Road
for the sums of US$28,000 and US$15,500 respectively per month.

a)
1

OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT OF MEAT CENTRES

'1 The Company’s subsidiary JPS 'frading Inc. owns three (3) Meat Centres.
These three Meat centres arc stocked with meat produced and supplied by
Bounty Farm Limited. We provide no consideration for the use of the name
“Bounty”.

a)

1
V

1
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DIRECTORS’ CONTl^CT

There were no service contracts with any of the Directors of the Company.1
SHARE CAPITAL

1 The authorized Share Capital of the Company is 40,000,000 of which 19,004,400 shares
have been issued and fully paid.

1 SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

J.P. SANTOS & CO. LTD. NUMBER OF SHARES % SHAREHOLDING1
John Fernandes Ltd. 17,339,825 91.24

1 A substantial shareholder is defined as a person who has holdings of 5% or more of the
issued Share Capital of the Company.

T PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND
associates

1
The principal activities of the Company its Subsidiaries and Associates and respective
turnover and contribution to operating profit were:

1) Principal Activities Turnover Contribution to Profit
T

GSOOO

6,191,093
GSOOO

301,162
■1

Trading

Rental of Property 100,740 100,740

Other 51,611
6,343,444

60,791
462,693■1

2) No Trading is carried on outside of Guyana by cither J. P. Santos & Co. Ltd.., its
subsidiaries or its associates. The subsidiaries of J. P. Santos & Co. Ltd. ai'c Value
4 U Inc. and JPS Trading Inc. which arc incorporated in Guyana and
business in the Distribution and Retail Trade locally.

The Associate Company is Guyana Biscuit (Holdings) Ltd which is incorporated
in Guyana and its principal activity is investment of funds in long and short term
securities.

carries on
1
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3) ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AT DECEMBER 31,2021

a. Value 4 U Inc.

b. IPS Trading Inc.
1,000 shares at $1,000 per share
1,000 shares at $ 1,000 per share

ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF ASSOCIATES AT DECEMBER 31,2021

1
Guyana Biscuit (Holdings) Ltd 5,475 Shares at $25 per share

1 The Directors and Chief Executive Officer, have no right to subscribe for shares
or debt securities of the Companies.

1
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

1 Analysis of Shareholders’ Interests according to size of holding as at 3U‘ December,
2021.

% of shareholders
No. of shareholders with Holdings1 Holdings No. of Shares held

-  10,000
-  20,000

-  50,000
-  100,000
-  500,000
- 1,000,000

Over&

167 83.501 477,199
281,186

277,600

303,000
325,590

●1 19 9.5010,001
20,001
50,001

100,001
500,001

1.000.001

7 3.50
4 2.00T 2 1.00
0 0 0
1 0.50 17.339.825f

200 100 19,004.400

1

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

J.P. SANTOS AND COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of J.P. Santos and Company Limited and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out on

pages 2 to 44.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (lESBA Code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
audit of the financial statements in Guyana and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the lESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

our
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey A udit Matter

T
1.

Valuation of Investments (Refer to notes 14(a),
14(b) and 14(c) in the group financial
statements).

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investments included;

Obtaining an understanding of the

valuation methods used by the Group

and assessing whether they were

consistent with prior years and our
understanding of the client;

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s Investments

comprised of fair value through other

comprehensive income of G$856,385,155 and
Investment in Associate of G$ 179,477,487. The

Company’s Investment in Subsidiaries totaled
G$ 103,675,000 as at this date.

I
f

Reviewing the source data used by the
Group in the valuation methods and

performing tests to ascertain its

completeness and accuracy;
t Investments are considered a key audit matter as

they are material to the Group and Investments
in Subsidiaries and Associate were valued based

cost, equity method and/or entity-developed
internal methods which involved significant

measurement j udgements.

on Reviewing the Group’s policy

accounting for the various categories of

investments and ensuring compliance
with relevant IFRS/IAS; and

on

r At 31 December 2021, there is significant

measurement uncertainty involved in these

valuations. As a result, the valuation of these

investments was significant to our audit.

Reviewing audited financial statements
of subsidiaries and associate to ensure1
going concern and identify potential
indicators of impairment.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit MatterKey A udit Matter

'J

Valuation and impairment of investment

properties (Refer to note 13(a) in the group

financial statements).

The consolidated financial statements detailed

investment properties with a net book value of

G$905,084,500.

Investment properties are considered a key audit
matter as significant management judgment was
used to select depreciation rates for this category

of buildings and equipment.

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation and impairment of investment
properties included;

-  Test checking of depreciation rates for
investment

consistency with accounting policies
and industry rates;

-  Assessing the methodology used by

properties to ensure

management to cany out impairment

and also obtaining and checking
written representation;

Physical verification

investment properties was also done;

Ensuring owner-occupied properties
were correctly eliminated

consolidated financial statements and

presented and disclosed in accordance
with IAS 40.

review

of selected

in the

■r
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation and impairment of property, plant and
equipment. (Refer to note 13(b) in the group
financial statements).

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation and impairment of property, plant and
equipment included;

-  Test checking of depreciation rates for

property, plant and equipment to ensure

consistency with the accounting policies
and industry rates;

!yr''

The consolidated financial statements detailed

property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of G$57,126,569. No revaluation of

property, plant and equipment was done during
the year.

I
1

Obtaining and checking
representation by management of their
assessment of impairment;

written
Property, plant and equipment is considered a

key audit matter as significant management

judgment was used to select depreciation rates

for property, plant and equipment.

In addition, an annual impairment review of all

property and equipment was done which
involved significant management judgement.

■  I
Assessing the methodology used by
management to carry out impairment
review;i;
Physical verification of selected

which were acquired during the
and prior years;

T assets

current

Other Information in the Annual Report

Management/Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Group’s 2021 Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact At the time
of issuing the audit opinion , the annual report was not available.

Responsibilities of those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

n'

»i *

f

V

f  '

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal 

control as the Directors determine is necessaiy
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do SO.

fA

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
1(c)



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transaction’s and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

are

I

I
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on 

the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

r

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

our

1(d)
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1
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our Auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The consolidated financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1991.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Malinda Persaud, FCCA.
I

I

1
/qJ i .

TSD LAL & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSI
77 Brickdam,

Stabroek,

Georgetown,

Guyana

I

1/ ̂

April 28, 2022Date:
/fll'
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
i.

Noles Company Group

2021 2020 2021 2020
GS G$ G$

I G$

5Turnover 6,191,093.128 5,893.870,593

Cost of sales 6(i) (5,106.216,694) (4,882,499,1881

Gross profit 1,084,876,434 1.011,371,405
r

9(a)Other income 263,319,768 248,929,229 148,969,052 142,140,805

T, Administrative expenses 7 (37,116,034) (39,452.132) (607,703,591) (565,104,861)

8Selling costs (176,010,107) (153,075,6281

Profit before interest and taxation1 226,203,734 209.477,097 450,131,788 435,331,721

9(b) 25,155,997Finance income 37.338,026 9,178,553 19,748,11

Share of associate profits I4(c)(i)
3.382.443 4,022,221T 251.359,731Profit before taxation 246,815,123 462,692.784 459,102,053

10 (41,755,637) (47,687,773)Taxation (176,385,031) (170,059,043)

t 209,604,094Profit for the year 199,127,350 286,307,753 289,043,010

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not he subsequently reclassified to

profit or loss
T

18(b) 371,798,143Fair value gain on investments

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

8,707,149 426,733,011 11,009,480
371,798,143T 8,707.149 426,733,011 11,009,480

Total comprehensive income for the year 581,402,237 207,834,499 713,040,764 300,052,490

Profit attributable to:

t
Equity holders of the parent 209,604,094 199,127.350 286,307,753 289,043,010

209,604,094 199,127,350T 286,307.753 289.043.010

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 581,402,237 207,834,499 713,040,764 300,052,4901
581,402,237 207,834,499 713,040.764 300,052.490

T Basic earnings per share in dollars 12 11.03 10.48 15.07 15.21

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements".

I
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Company

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Note Share
capital

Other Accumulated
earnings

Capital
reserve

General
reserve

lotalreserve

G$ G$ G$ G$ G$ G$

At 31 December 2019 19,004,400 445,452,116 1,265,521,569 212,032,483 1.620,376 1,943,630,944

Changes in equity 2020

Profit for the year 199,127,350
199,127,350

Other comprehensive income for the year 18(b) 8,707,149
8,707,149

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,707,149 199,127.350
207,834.499

Dividends II (114,026,400)
(114,026,400)

At 31 December 2020 19,004,400 454,159,265 1,350,622,519 212,032,483 1,620,376 2,037,439,043

Changes in equity 2021

Profit for the year 209.604,094
209,604,094

Other comprehensive income for the year 18(b) 371,798,143
371,798,143

Total comprehensive income for the year 371,798,143 209,604,094
581,402,237

Dividends II (133,030,800)
(133,030,800)

At 31 Deeember 2021 19,004,400 825,957,408 1,427.195,813 212,032,483 1,620.376 2.485.810,480

'The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements" "

3



J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group

Equity holders of the parent

Share

capital

Other

reserve

General

reserve

Accumulated

eaminos
Capital
reserveNote Total

G$ G$ G$GS GSGS

Balance at 31 December 2019 19,004,400 2.384,548,535524,032,684 1,620,3761,627,858,592 212,032,483

Changes in equity 2020

Profit for the year 289,043,010289,043,010

Other comprehensive income for the year 11,009,480 11,009,480

Total comprehensive income for the year 18(b) 11,009,480 300,052,490289,043,010

IIDividends (114,026,400) (114,026.400^

Balance at 31 December 2020 19,004,400 535,042,164 1,620,376 2,570,574.6251,802,875,202 212,032,483

Changes in equity 2021

Profit for the year 286,307,753 286,307,753

Other comprehensive income for the year 18(b) 426,733,011 426,733,011

Total comprehensive income for the year 426,733,011 286,307,753 713,040,764

IIDividends (133,030,800) (133,030.80m

Balance at 31 December 2021 19,004,400 961,775.175 1,956.152.155 1.620,376 3,150.584 580212.032.483

'The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements"



r J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31 2021

GroupCompany
202020212021 2020Notes
G$G$GS GSASSETS

Non-current assets

86,804,550

4,970,993

901,152,488

57,126,569

2,692,621

905,084,500

13(b) 4,206,288 44,836,372Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investments - subsidiary
- others

Investment in associate

13(a)

14(a)

14(b)

14(c)

905,084,500

103,675,000
856,385,155

9,442,250

901,152,488

103,675,000

484,587,012

9,442,250

484,587,012
121,937,822

856,385,155
179,477,4871

r

1,599,452,8652,000,766,3321,878,793,1931 1,543,693,122

Current assets

T 525,795,145

16,642,589
360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

556,138,678

10,837,124

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688,317

6(ii)Inventories

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

5,805,465

164,797,429

753,349,300

22,000,248

15 9,894,429

349,584,288

357,481,326

16

1
1,755,981,094 1,483,398,801945,952,442 716,960,043Total current assets

1 3,756,747,426 3,082,851,6662,260,653,1652,824,745,635TOTAL ASSETS

equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

19,004,400

961,775,175

1,620,376

1,956,152,155

212,032,483

17 19,004,400

825,957,408

1,620,376

1,427,195,813

212,032,483

19,004,400

454,159,265

1,620,376

1,350,622,519

212,032,483

19,004,400

535,042,164

1,620,376

1,802,875,202
212,032,483

Share capital

Other reserve

General reserve

Accumulated earnings

Capital reserve

18(b)

18(c)

18(a)

2,037,439,043 3,150,584,5892,485,810,480 2,570,574,625Total equity
>rt/

Non-current liabilities

47,350,864

37,256,775

3,893,369

26,366,875

24 3,893,369

35,475,944

47,350,864

25,917,840
Lease liability
Deferred tax

i?" 10

84,607,639 30,260,244 73,268,704Total non-current liabilities 39,369,313

r Current liabilities

328,904,602

16,250,928

21,097,723

1,646,493
208,002,847

184,421,005

33,540,159

26,443,206

792,280

193,811,687

19 72,547,373

213,786,131

11,585,845

1,646,493

62,413,593

64,280,348

11,120,262
792,280

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Taxes payable
Lease liability
Bank overdrall

20

1
24
21

575,902,593299,565,842 138,606,483 439,008,337Total current liabilities

■'1
606,162,837TOTAL LIABILITIES 338,935,155 512,277,041223,214,122

3,756,747,426TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,824,745.635 3,082.851,6662,260,653.165
7.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 28, 2022
On Behalf of the Board: /9 / ■/ /■nK

Director

Director
ir

1 he accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements"
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2021

 Company Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
GS G$ G$ GS

Operating activities
Profit before taxation 251,359,731 246,815,123 462,692,784 459,102,053

Adjustments for:

Depreciation/amortisation
Share of associate prolits

Adjustments for gain/loss of disposal of property, plant &
equipment

Adjustment to associate company
Interest received

Interest paid
Dividends received

y'- -

21,379,186 22,824,316 39,479,002
(3,382,443)

21,652

463,800

28,983,024

(19,804,471)

(24,525,552)

38,219,064

(4,022,221)

(103,722)

463,800

48,117,925

(28,369,814)

(10,813,843)

r 27,766,572

(2,610,575)

(144,989,352)

45,835,410

(8,497,384)

(121,277,643)

T Operating profit before working

capital changes

(!ncrease)/decrease in inventories
lncrease/(decrease) in trade and other receivables

(Increase)/ decrease in due by related companies
Increase/(decrease) in due to related companies

lncrease/(decrease) in trade and other payables

152,905,562 185,699,822 483,927,796 502,593,242

30,343,533

(174,524,384)

(406,993,569)

(17,289,231)
144,483,597

(20,015,587)
3,747,851

192,998,242

862,927

55,919,310

T (154,903,000)
(403,765,012)

10,133,780

149,505,783

(1,881,000)
113,008,471

(27,416,121)
7,555,520

T Cash generated from/(used in) operations (246,122,887) 276,966,692 59,947,742 736,105,985

(48,876,349)Taxes paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

(62,041,068) (186,773,097) (174,391,300)

(126,825,355) 561,714,6851 (294,999,236) 214,925,624

Investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investments

Interest received

Dividends received

(24,469,940) (1,395,000) (51,957,135) (5,631,349)

(4,970,993)
300,000

(8,062,740)

(48,117,925)

10,813,843

"i
39,788,826 40,480,822

(8,062,740)

(45,835,410)

121,277,643

(27,766,572)

144,989,352
(28,983,024)

24,525,552

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 132,541,666 65,984,493 (15,933,785) (55,669,164)

Financing activities

Interest paid

Lease payment
Dividends paid

.'i' 2,610,575

(42,603,283)
(133,030,800)

8,497,384

(733,593)
(114,026,400)

19,804,471

(42,603,283)
(133,030,800)

28,369,814

(733,593)
(114,026,400)

Net cash used in financing activities (173,023,508) (106,262,609) (155,829,612)'ll (86,390,179)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (335,481,078) 174,647,508 (298,588,752) 419,655,342

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 357,481,326 182,833,818 186,876,630 (232,778,712)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 22,000.248 357,481,326 (111,712,122) 186,876,630

Comprising:
Cash on hand and at bank

Bank overdraft
22,000,248-n 357,481,326 96,290,725

(208,002,847)

380,688,317

(193,811,687)

22,000.248 357,481,326 (111,712,122) 186,876,630

1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements'

1
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1
J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

I NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1  Incorporation and activities

The Company was incorporated in Guyana on 6 April 1910 as a limited liability Company and under the Companies Act

Chapter 89:01 and continued under the Companies Act 1991. The Company is involved in the rental of property.

I,
The Company owns 100% of Value 4 U Incorporated, formerly Bryden and Fernandes Inc. which was incorporated in

Guyana in July 2000 and which is engaged in the distribution of detergents and household products.

I.
The Company owns 100% of JPS Trading Inc. which was incorporated in Guyana in December 2006 and is involved in

the retail of goods.

I
/ The Company also owns 42.36% of Guyana Biscuit (Holdings) Limited which was incorporated in Guyana on April 1917

and is involved in the investment of funds in long and short term securities.

 1

I John Fernandes Limited owns 91.24% (2020 - 91.24%) of the issued share capital of J.P. Santos & Company Limited.

1 2 New and amended standards and interpretations

Amendments effective for the current year end

Effective for annual

periods beginning on
or after

New and Amended Standards

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)
Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases:

Covid-19-Related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021

1 January, 2021

1 April, 2021
)

None of the above new and amended standards and interpretations had an impact on the financial statements.

Pronouncements effective in future periods available for early adoption

Annual Improvements 2018-2020

Narrow scope amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16 and IAS 37

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

Amendments to IAS 1: Presentation of financial statements

on classification of liabilities

Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1, IAS 8 and IFRS Practice statement

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

1 January, 2022

1 January, 2022

1 January, 2023

Immediately available

1 January, 2023

1 January, 2023

None of the above new or amended standards or interpretations is expected to have a material effect on the Group’s
financial statements.
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

1 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 3  Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the

revaluation of certain investments, property and equipment and conforms with International Financial

Reporting Standards.

1

(b) Revenue and expenses recognition

The Group follows a 5-step process to determine whether to recognize revenue:

1

1
1  Identifying the contract with a customer

2 Identifying the performance obligations

3 Determining the transaction price

4 Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5 Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance

obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

1

1

.  r
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts

receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business to third parties, net of discounts,

and sales related taxes. The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of

unsatisfied performance obligations. Similarly, if the Group satisfies a performance obligation before it

receives the consideration, the Group recognises either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of

financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the

consideration is due. In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the various

performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a contract
excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

T ■

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and control of the asset has been transferred. The

Group considers whether there are other promises in contract that are separate performance obligations to

which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g. customer loyalty points). In determining

the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the

existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the

customer (if any). Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

Income from rental of the Company and Group’s various premises is recognised on an accrual basis.

8.^1



■

J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

I
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

i: Summary of significant accounting policies cont'd3

(c) i) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
1 I

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative

purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or revalued amounts.
Revalued amounts are taken as the fair value at the date of revaluation determined from market-based

evidence by appraisal undertaken by professional valuers.
i

1/ Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is credited to the capital
reserve. Depreciation on revalued assets is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.1
Equipment, fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised

impairment loss.1
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of property plant and equipment, other than
land and construction work in progress, over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method
follows:

as

2021 and 7.070

Buildings

Motor vehicles, furniture, fittings and equipment

- 2.00%

- Varying rates up to 50%
●1"

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is charged in the year of acquisition.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land and construction work-in-progress. Steel structured
buildings are not depreciated as the depreciation would be minimal.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

ii) Leases

The Company and Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of
12 months or less) and leases of low value. For these leases, the Company and Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.

1 9» f



J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

I
3  Summary of significant accounting policies cont'd

(c) ii) Leases cont'd

I

1
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee uses its

incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:■  1i

Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement

date;

The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

I

I
The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

r
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to refiect interest on the lease liability

(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company and Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
asset) whenever:

The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised

lease payments using a revised discount rate.

use

.  1

i
The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a
revised discount rate is used).

an

A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease

liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at
before the commencement day. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

a

or

'fi
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented under Property, Plant and Equipment in the statement of financial position.'ff

The Company and Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for

identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.
any1
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTSI
3  Summary of significant accounting policies cont'd

(d) Inventories

I Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value using the weighted average cost method. Finished goods cost
comprise cost of production and attributable overheads appropriate to the location and condition.

Net realizable value is the selling price in the normal course of business less costs of completion and selling expenses,

(e) Investment properties

After initial recognition, the Company and Group has chosen the cost model to measure all of its investment properties in
accordance with IAS 16 requirements for that model. None of the investment properties were held for sale.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of investment properties, other than land and construction work in progress,
over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method as follows:

li1

I

1

1 2021 and 2020
2%Buildings

Furniture, fittings and equipment - Varying rates up to 50%

1
(f) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and Group have a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company and Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

De-recognition of provisions

Provisions are de-recognized when it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation.

1

1

.  1

(g) Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the primary economic environment in which the Company and
Group operate. The financial statements are presented in Guyana Dollars, which is the Company and Group’s functional
currency.

Transactions in currencies other than Guyana dollars are recorded at the official or Republic Bank (Guyana) Limited Cambio
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the official
Republic Bank (Guyana) Limited rates prevailing on that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in the statement of profit or loss for the period, except for exchange
differences arising on non-monetary assets and liabilities where the changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity.

or

rates

■1 11



J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTSI
3  Summary of significant accounting policies cont'd

I (h) Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.1

l! Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expenses that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company and Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted in Guyana or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.1
Deferred tax

1I

Deferred tax is recognized on the differences between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets

recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporaiy differences
can be utilized.

arer
]

The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

1 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realized based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively been enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

■

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and
liabilities.

manner in

I
(

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities, and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and the Company & Group intend to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on  a net basis.

I

(i) Capital reserves

This comprises of revaluation surplus which arose from the revaluation of land and buildings.

This reserve is not distributable,

(j) Other reserve

Fair value adjustment of “FVTOCl” investments is credited to this account.

f.

This reserve is not distributable.

I 12
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

1 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3  Summary of significant accounting policies cont'd

(k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the Company and Group’s consolidated statement of financial position when the
Company and Group become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Trade and other receivablesI
f

Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost.

Trade and other oavables

Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost.

1 Investments

Investments consist of equity.

1
Management has made an irrevocable election on initial application of IFRS 9 to classify equity instruments as FVTOCI with all
subsequent changes in fair value being recognized in other comprehensive income. This election is made on the basis that the
instruments are not held for trading. Dividend income from these investments is recognized in profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries and associate companies are carried at cost in the Company's financial statements.

Investment in associate companies in the Group is stated using the equity method.

1

1
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than investment or other
purposes.

These are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, with maturity dates of three (3) months or less.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished, i.e. when obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Management fees

This represents the value of technical expertise and services provided to Value 4 U Inc. by John Fernandes Limited,

(m) Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company and Group review the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company and Group estimate the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its cairying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease.

(I)

1

I

t

I '

'//,
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1

1
3  Summaiy of significant accounting policies cont'd

(n) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements at 31 December 2021 of the following:

Subsidiaries:

1

y
Country of

registration shareholding

ParentName of Main business

Company

I’
Guyana 100 DistributionValue 4 U Inc.

I JPS Trading Inc. Guyana

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieyed through the ownership of shares.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
loss and other comprehensiye income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal

appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries is identified separately from
the Group’s equity therein. Non-controlling interest consists of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and non-controlling interest’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses

applicable to the non-controlling interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group,
except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses,

(o) Associate Company

Name of Associate Country of

registration

100 Retail

or

, as

Parent Main business

shareholding

1

1

I

1

Guyana Biscuit

Holdings Ltd.

An associate is an entity over which the Company and Group have significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a Joint venture.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
in control or in Joint venture over those policies.

Guyana 42.36% Investment of funds in long and short term securities

The results, assets and liabilities of the associate are incorporated in the financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investment in the associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost

and adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of
individual investments.

f 14



J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

*1'

1 Summary of significant accounting policies confd

Segment reporting

A business segment is a component of an entity that is engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns

that are different from those of other business segments.

3
1

(P)

1

I A geographical segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing similar products and services that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments.

The Company and Group analyses its operations by business into one segment for the Company and the Group’s two segments
disclosed in the financial statements. The format is reflecting services and trading.

as

●  f
Dividends

Dividends that are proposed and deelared are recorded as an appropriation of aceumulated earnings in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity in the period in which they have been approved. Dividends that are proposed and declared after the reporting date
disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

Operating lease and leasehold improvements

Operating lease costs are recognised as an expense in the period which they are incurred.

Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortised over the shorter of the useful life of the improvements or the lease term.

are

(q)

I

1 (r)

1

1 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs for the
period were expensed since they were not directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset.

(s)

r
Pension fund(t)

The Group participates in a defined contribution pension plan. Employees are required to contribute 5% of their gross salary, while
the employers contribute 10% of the employee’s salary. The Group currently has ninety eight employees (2020 - ninety-five)
contributing to the scheme.

An employee must be employed by the Group for two years before they can be part of this scheme.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

i

(u)

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company and Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

4

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision aflects both current and future periods.

I
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES1
(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

1 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty cont'd4

-  r Key sources of estimation uncertainty

15 The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that haye a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements:

1

1 Trade and other receiyablesi)

On a regular basis, management reyiews trade and other receiyables to assess impairment. Based on information ayailable as

to the likely impairment in cash flows, decisions are taken in determining appropriate proyisions to be made for impairment.

1 Other financial assetsii)

In determining the fair yalue of inyestments and other financial assets in the absence of a market, the directors estimate the
likelihood of impairment by using discounted cash flows.1
I Iseful liyes of property, plant and equipmentiii)

Management reyiews the estimated useful liyes of property, plant and equipment at the end of each year to determine whether
the useful liyes of property, plant and equipment should remain the same.

1 Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reyiews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets haye suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoyerable
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoyerable amount of an indiyidual asset, the Company estimates the recoyerable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

amount

iv)

Recoyerable amount is the higher of fair yalue less costs to sell and yalue in use. If the recoyerable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoyerable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit or loss, unless the releyant asset is carried at  a reyalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a reyaluation decrease.

f

16



J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

H ■

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1
GroupCompany

20202020 20212021

I G$G$ G$G$

6,191,093,128 5,893,870,5931 5 Turnoverj

This represents the value of goods and services sold locally to third parties.

I

I GroupCompany6(i) Cost of sales
20212021 2020 2020

G$G$G$ G$

1
443,744,700 514,810,700Opening inventories

Add:

PurchasesI 5,090,361,834 4,811,433,188

5,534,106,534 5,326,243,8881
Less:

Closing inventories 427,889,840 443,744,700

1
5,106,216,694 4,882,499,188

r  ●

Company Group(ii) Inventory'I
20212021 2020 2020

G$G$ G$ G$

427,889,840Inventory for resale 443,744,700

97,905,305Goods in transit 112,393,978

525,795,145 556,138,678

Inventory of $ 427,889,840 is expected to be realized within the next year.
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

1 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

7 Administrative expenses

i: GroupCompany
2021 20202021 2020

G$G$ G$ G$

1 405,372,633

11,402,377

30,294,443

4,022,670

6,919,151

720,417

532,313

9,774,969

1,817,091

11,447,544

1,136,658

5,699,041

144,256

376,264,192

10,450,079

26,962,268

4,970,671

5,910,279

948,412

287,927

9,930,879

2,861,598

10,081,377

69,959

5,753,324

Salaries and wages
Bonus

National Insurance Scheme

Advertising

Travelling and subsistence
VAT write off

Bond expenses

Security

Repairs and maintenance - equipment

Repairs and maintenance - motor vehicle

Repairs and maintenance - building
Insurance

Loss on disposal

Severance pay
Bad debt

Donations

Electricity

Telephone
Leasehold amortization

Depreciation

Cleaning and sanitation

Office expense
Rates and taxes

AGM expenses
Directors' fees (a)

Entertainment

General expenses

Stationery & postage

Legal fees
Pensions

Pension scheme

Medical

Audit fees

Professional fees

Other expenses
Directors' travel

f 328,500 289,800

r
1 4,393,699 4,393,699

205,579

7,961,737

266,955

25,722,949

1,529,925

12,946,683

25,272,381

1,778,227

1,436,206

6,511,917

35,175

528,000

225,372

158,120

2,589,384

315,000

3,735,315

12,805,550

198,833

2,524,000

3,502,175

244,413

120,000

18,428,479

931,105

23,807,760

2,214,767

15,298,476

24,180,526

1,513,367

1,077,768

6,483,744

29,538

528,000

132,791

146,000

2,954,164

64,000

3,130,116

13,756,042

239,385

2,492,000

892,000

1
33,540

13,020,104

8,359,082

34,130

12,946,683

9,877,633

*1"

6,483,744

29,538

528,000

6,511,917

35,175

528,000

146,000

87,946

64,000

3,130,116

158,120

92,827

315,000

3,735,315

131,765

260,000

153,833

260,000

120,000120,000 120,000

37,116,034 39,452,132 607,703,591 565,104,861

(a) Directors' fees

- Chairman 144,000 144,000 144,000 144,000

- Four (2020 - Four) directors equally (i) 384,000384,000 384,000 384,000

(
528,000528,000 528,000 528,000

(i) The four (4) directors were paid $96,000 each.
-^1
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1 J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)1
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 8  Selling costs
GroupCompany

20212021 20202020

1* G$G$ G$ G$

2,722,785

3,097,665

60,720,018

5,927,061

12,536,447

1,091,398

30,966,000

620,047

25,565,218

3,562,123

7,205,106

6,677,648

241,718

4,537,258

2,041,591

1,725,870

6,772,154

2,969,482

2,485,208

61,052,958

6,147,459

10,499,233

1,176,288

14,775,660

504,114

19,805,830

3,345,199

6,667,928

8,929,996

944,816

2,638,740

1,815,581

1,682,315

7,634,821

Telephone
Insurance - stocks

Electricity

Security

Sanitation

Repairs to building
Rent

Rates and taxes

Packing materials
Uniforms

Office expenses/stationery

Medical expenses/staff welfare

Advertising

Travel and entertainment

Vehicle expenses

Licence

Repairs and maintenance

1
T

I

1

I
/I

1 176,010,107 153,075,628

9(a) Other income

Rental of wharf and buildings

Dividend received

Miscellaneous

Gain on disposal of assets

118,330,416

144,989,352

127,651,586

121,277,643

100,740,000

24,525,552

23,580,896

122,604

110,263,400

10,813,843

20,959,840

103,722

263,319,768 248,929,229 148,969,052 142,140,805

9 (b) Finance incomeZ(cost)

Interest receivable

Interest payable

Loan interest payable

Bank charges

27,766,572

(2,560,715)

45,835,410

(8,313,277)

28,983,024

(4,563,466)

48,117,925

(13,251,550)

(88,650)

(15,029,614)(49,860) (15,241,005)(184,107)

25,155,997 9,178,553 19,748,11137,338,026
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 10 Taxation

Company Group
2021 20202020 2021
GS

1
GS G$ GS

Corporation tax
Deferred tax

31,950,623

(1,780,831)

30,169,792

37,756,089

(1,094,641)

36,661,448

159,790,596

13,908,375

160,022,168

449,035

160,471,203 173,698,971

1 Property tax 11,585,845 11,026,325 15,599,983 14,517,993

Share of associate company tax

Prior year adjustment

313,845 568,775

(18,726,696)

170,059,043f 41,755,637 47,687,773 176,385,031

Company

I
2021 2020

GS GS

Reconciliation of tax expenses

Accounting profit 251,359,731 246,815,123

I Corporation tax at 25%
Add:

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in

determining taxable profits

62,839,933 61,703,781

1
Depreciation/Amortisation for accounting

purposes

5,344,797 5,706,079

1 68,184,729 67,409,860
Deduct:

Tax effect of depreciation and other

allowances for lax purposes including lease
Non taxable income

13,232

(36,247,338)

665,640

(30,319,411)

31,950,623 37,756,089

Property tax
Deferred tax

11,585,845

(1,780,831)
11,026,325

(1,094,641)

41,755,637 47,687,773

Group
2021 2020

GS GS

Reconciliation of tax expenses

Accounting profit 462,692,784 459,102,053

Corporation tax at 25%
Add:

Tax effect of expenses not deductible in

determining taxable profits

115,673,196 114,775,513

Depreciation/Amortization for accounting
purposes

Non deductible expense

9,869,751 9,554,766

1,418,483

126,961,430
2,994,095

127,324,374
Deduct:

Tax effect of depreciation and other

allowances for tax purposes
Non taxable income

(6,574,726)

(6,131,388)

114,255,316

45,766,852

(6,701,275)

(2,703,461)

117,919,638

41,870,958EfTect of varying rates

Corporation tax 160,022,168 159,790,596I

Property lax

Prior year tax
Deferred tax

Share of associate company tax

15,599,983 14,517,993

(18,726,696)

13,908,375
568,775

449,035
313,845

I

176,385,031 170,059,043
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIESi  ■

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS1
10 Taxation Cont'd

I Components of deferred tax liability

Company Group
2021

f 2020 2021 2020
G$ G$ G$ G$

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment -
Statement of changes in equity

Property, plant and equipment

Excess of minimum tax over corporation tax

45,628,644

(10,152,700)
45,628,644

(8,371,869)
45,628,644

(10,038,265)

(9,223,504)

45,628,644

(8,217,996)
(11,492,808)

1 35,475,944 37,256,775 26,366,875 25,917,840

Movement in temporary differencesI
At 1 January 37,256,775 38,351,416 25,917,840 12,009,465

1 Movement (1,780,831) (1,094,641) 449.035 13,908.375

At 31 December 35,475,944 37,256,775 26,366,875 25,917.840

11 Dividends
Company and Group

2021
Amounts recognised as distributed to
shareholders in the year:

Interim dividend for year $4 per share (2020 - $4)

G$ G$

76,017,600 76,017,600

Final dividend of $3 per share (2020 - $2) 57,013,200 38,008,800

133,030,800 114,026.400

Company Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
G$ G$ G$ G$12 Basic earnings per share in dollarsI

Net profit for the year after taxation and

Non controlling interest 209,604,094 199,127,350 286,307,753 289,043,0101

Number of ordinary shares issued and fully paid 19,004,400 19,004,400 19,004,400 19,004,400
I

Basic earnings per share in dollars

11.03 10.48 15.07 15,21
1,
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPAN'

1 (SUBSIDIARY OFJOl

NOTES TO

I
13 (a) Investment properties

Freel

1' Leasehold land

land build

G$ G

Company and Group

Cost

At 1 January 2020 20,757 700,9

I Additions

At 31 December 2020 700,920,757

I Additions

At 31 December 2021 700,920,757

I
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation

I At 1 January 2020 44,0

Charge for the year 7,5

I At 31 December 2020 51,6

Charge for the year 7,5

At 31 December 2021 59,1

Net book values:

20,757 649,3At 31 December 2020

641,8At 31 December 2021 20,757

At 31 December 2020 45,386,652 329,476,0844,719,618 279,369,814/

Charge for the year

Disposals

16,662,702

(4,990,632)
3,422,035

(4,555,608)

841,258 12,399,409

(435,024)

r
At 31 December 2021

Net book values:

341,148,15444,253,0795,560,876 291,334,199

At 31 December 2020 86,804,55044,836,372 16,066,82325,901,355\
At 31 December 2021 57,126,5694,206,288 22,513,38230,406,899
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

13 (a) Investment properties
Furniture,

Fittings and
equipment

Freehold

land and

buildings

Construction

Work-in-progress
Leasehold

TotalLeaseland
G$ G$G$G$G$G$

Company and Group

Cost

323,092,899 1,053,659,08029.604,202700,941,22220,757At 1 January 2020

1,395,0001,395,000Additions

324,487,899 1,055,054,080700,941,222 29,604,202At 31 December 2020 20,757

24,469,94024,469,940Additions

1,079,524,02029,604,202 324,487,899At 31 December 2021 700,941,222 24,469,94020,757

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation

133,437,085At 1 January 2020 44,090,441 25,187,405 64,159,239

7,517,824 20,464,507Charge for the year 12,946,683

At 31 December 2020 51,608,265 25,187,405 153,901,59277,105,922

Charge for the year 7,517,824 20,537,92813,020,104

At 31 December 2021 59,126,089 25,187,405 174,439,52090,126,026

Net book values:

20,757At 31 December 2020 649,332,957 901,152,4884,416,797 247,381,977

At 31 December 2021 20,757 641,815,133 905,084,5004,416,797 24,469,940234,361,873



l.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)
L

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

13 (b) Property, plant and equipment

1 Right of use
asset

Company
Total

G$ G$
Cost

At 1 January 2020 49,555,990 49,555,990

1 Additions

49,555,990

(39,788,826)

At 31 December 2020 49,555,990

(39,788,826)

9,767,164

Disposals

At 31 December 2021Ij.
9,767,164

Accumulated depreciation

I At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020

Charge for the year

2,359,809

2,359,809

2,359,809

2,359,809

4,719,618

841,258

4,719,618

841,2581
At 31 December 2021 5,560,876 5,560,876

Net book values:I At 31 December 2020 44,836,372 44,836,372

At 31 December 2021 4,206,288 4,206,288

I
Furniture,

fittings and
equipment

Right of use
asset

Motor

vehicles Total
G$G$ G$ G$

Group

Cost

At I January 2020
Additions

Disposals

63,463,97549,555,990 301,034,820
4,236,349

414,054,785
4,236,349

(2,010,500)(2,010,500)

At 31 December 2020 49,555,990 305,271,169 61,453,475 416,280,634

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2021

17,049,209

(579,280)

321,741,098

10,437,986

(5,125,000)

66,766,461

27,487,195

(45,493,106)(39,788,826)

9,767,164 398,274,723

Comprising:

Cost
Valuation

9,767,164 110,727,665

211,013,433

66,766,461 187,261,290

211,013,433

9,767,164 321,741,098 66,766,461 398,274,723
Accumulated depreciation

I
At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year

Charges written back

2,359,809
2,359,809

45,194,805

2,006,069

(1,814,222)

265,981,135

13,388,679

313,535,749

17,754,557

(1,814,222)

At 31 December 2020 4,719,618 279,369,814 45,386,652 329,476,084

Charge for the year

Disposals

841,258 3,422,035

(4,555,608)

16,662,702

(4,990,632)
12,399,409

(435,024)

At 31 December 2021

Net book values:

5,560,876 44,253,079 341,148,154291,334,199

At 31 December 2020 44,836,372 86,804,55016,066,82325,901,355

At 31 December 2021 4,206.288 57,126,56922,513,38230,406,899
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I
J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

1 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

14 Investments Company

1 CostCost

20202021

G$G$

(a) Investment in subsidiary

I
Value 4 U Inc.

JPS Trading Inc.
102,675,000

1,000,000
102,675,000

1,000,000

I
103,675,000 103,675,000

1 (b) Investment - FVTOCI (i) Company and Group

1 Cost

2021

Fair value

2021

Fair value

2020

G$ G$

Banks DIH Limited

Demerara Tobacco Company Limited

Republic Bank (Guyana Ltd)

Guyana Unit Trust
Caribbean Container Inc.

Demerara Distillers Limited

Sterling Products Ltd

134,443,952

150,919,200

8,100,000

12,144,476

275,400

3,170,043

401,540

454,572,580

335,376,000

30,690,000

18,483,723

382,500

16,136,322

744,030

259,755,760

167,688,000

24,000,000

18,377,926

382,500

13,733,040

649,786

1
1'

309,454,611 856,385,155 484,587,012

(i) Category of investment Company and Group
2021 2020

G$ G$

Quoted investments 837,901,432 466,209,086

Un-quoted investments 18,483,723 18,377,926

856,385,155 484,587,012

Income from the categories of investment

Company Group
2021 20212020 2020
G$ G$G$ G$

Quoted investments 23,941,875 23,941,87510,621,844 10,621,844

Un-quoted investments 121,047,477 583,677110,655,799 191,999

144,989.352 24,525,552121,277,643 10,813,843
h

24
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1i

14 Inveslmenls - cont'd Company Group
2021 20202020 2021

G$(c) Associate company G$ G$G$

1
At January I 116,645,8459,442,250 121,937,8229,442,250

1 Share of reserves of associate company(i) 5,291,97757,539,665

At December 31 121,937,8229,442,250 179,477,4879,442,250

IJ

(i) Share of reserves of associate company Group
2021 202Q

G$G$

I
!

Group share of associate company’s profit

Group share of associate company taxes and other adjustments

4,022,2213,382,443

54,157,222 1,269,756

1 57,539,665 5,291,977

The summary financial statements of Guyana Biscuit Holdings Ltd is presented below:

1 Statement of comprehensive income Guyana Biscuit Holdings Ltd
20202021

G$ G$

1
I

8,454,185 9,885,437Income

Profit after taxation 7,244,750 8,153,349

Statement of financial position

Total assets 447,373,648 310,230,127

Shareholders' funds 437,902,981 302,055.777

Liabilities 10,090,500 8,174,350

Total equity and liabilities 447,993,481 310,230,127-1

Company Group
15 Trade and other receivables 2021 2020 2021 2020

G$ G$GS G$

Trade receivables

Other receivables
Value added tax

Prepayments

1,573,200

7,124.229
2,770,200
7,124,229

157,317,161
41,126,192

147,531,628

31,655,805
2,984,779

3,636,300156,100,000 161,889,543

164,797,429 360,332,896 185,808,5129,894,429

16 Due by related companies
j

Bounty Farm Limited
John Fernandes Ltd

751.712,640

1,636.660
755,283,079

1,636,660

303,537,464

46,388,706
303,195,582

46,388,706

753,349,300 756,919,739 349,926,170349,584,288

The above inter-company balances are unsecured and are considered recoverable in full. Interest of 10% is paid on balances owing.'I
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
t

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 17 Share capital
Company and Group

20202021

Authorised

Number of Ordinary shares 40,000,00040,000,000

1 G$G$

Issued and fully paid
19,004,400 Ordinary shares 19,004,40019,004,400

I All fully paid ordinary shares with no par value and carrying equal voting rights

Company and Group18 (a) Capital reserve
20202021

I G$G$

404,511

211,013,433

614,539

404,511

211,013,433

614,539

Share premium
Revaluation

Others

I 212,032,483212,032,483

GroupCompany
202020212021 2020

1 G$G$G$ G$

961,775,175 535,042,164(b) Other reserve 825,957,408 454,159,265

This represents the cumulative fair value adjustment of investments held.
Both (a) and (b) above are not distributable.

There is no lax effect on gains or losses.1
Company and Group

1

1
2021 2020

G$ GS

(c) General reserve 1,620,376 1,620,376

1 This amount has been set aside for the growth and development of the business.
There is no effect on gains or losses.

19 Trade and other payables

GroupCompany
2021 2021 20202020

G$GS G$ GS

Trade payables

Other payables
Value added lax

Accruals

10,758,768

4,266,020

1,562,531

55,960,054

97,378,901

143,283,659

31,051,672

57,190,370

85,692,915

26,979,419

21,758,661

49,990,010

7,487,466

4,266,020

1,870,097

48,790,010

184,421,00572,547,373 62,413,593 328,904,602

20 Due to related companies GroupCompany
2021 2021 20202020

GS GSGS GS

(a) John Fernandes Limited

(b) Bounty Farm Ltd

(c) JPS Trading Inc.

5,194,843

28,345,316
3,297,669

12,953,259

213,786,131 64,280,348

213,786,131 16,250,928 33,540,15964,280,348

(a) Represents operating expenses paid on behalf of the Group,

(b) Represents amounts owing for purchases made,

(c) Represents operating expenses given as a loan that is paid on behalf of the Group.
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J.P. SANTOS & COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(SUBSIDIARY OF JOHN FERNANDES LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1
GroupCompany

202020212021 2020

1 G$G$G$ G$

193,811,687208,002,84721 Bank Overdraft

1 This facility is secured by a guarantee and mortgage for the sum of G$75,000,000 granted by J.P. Santos and Company Limited and
G$5,000,000 secured against the registered office building of the company.

I The effective interest rate on the overdraft facilities was 8.5% (2020-9%).

22 Related party transactions1
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party

in making financial or operating decisions.

Listed below are transactions with related parties:1 GroupCompany
2021 202020202021

G$ G$ G$G$

1 Parent company - John Fernandes Limited

150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000150,000,000(i) Guarantee

1 3,297,669 5,194,843(ii) Payable

109,620,000 109,533,000 109,620,000 109,533,000(iii) Rental received
I

21,493,44320,039,344(iv) Interest on loan

46,388,706i1,636,660 46,388,706 1,636,660(v) Receivable

Fellow subsidiary - Bounty Farm Limited

496.742.801507.090.797(i) Purchases from

(ii) Interest received on loan

(iii) Receivable

(iv) Payable

Subsidiary - Value 4U Inc.

27.766.572 25.796,066 25.796.06627.766.572

751.712.640 303.195.582 755.283.079 lO:

28.345.316

Guarantee by J.P. Santos & Co. Ltd, 105,552,283 105,552,283 105,552,283105,552,283

Subsidiary - JPS Trading Inc.

64,280,348213,786,131Payable

2,560,715 8,313,2778,313,277Interest paid 2,560,715

No provision made for any related party receivables.

Interest of 10% is charged on all loans to related parties and is fully eliminated consolidation for all subsidiaries.upon
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} 22 Related party transactions - cont'd

Company and Group
20202021

I G$G$

Key management personnel

I (i) Directors' fees 528,000 528,000

I Key management personnel for both Company and Group are paid by the parent company.

I 23 Contingent liabilities

Company and Group
2021 2020I G$ G$

I Guarantees in favour of Value 4 U Inc. 105,552,283 105,552,283

24 Lease liability

Company and Group
2021 2020

G$ G$

Repayment due within one year 1,646,493 792,280

Repayment due within two to five years

Repayment due over 5 years

3,893,369 4,609,484

42,741,380

3,893,369 47,350,864

5,539,862 48,143,144

i
The lease agreement is for an immovable property at Lot 129 Regent Road, Bourda,

Georgetown, Guyana, consisting a term of 25 years and discounted to present value at a rate

of 8%. During 2021, it was decided to purchase the property and subsequently the lease term
was reduced to 6 years.
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25 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis

]
Company

J Financial

assets and

liabilities at

amortized cost

2021

I TotalFVTOCI

G$ G$ G$I
Assets

1
103,675,000

9,442,250

Investments - subsidiary

Investment in associate

Investments - others

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

103,675,000

9,442,250

856,385,155

164,797,429

753,349,300

22,000,248

I

1
/■

856,385,155
164,797,429
753,349,300
22,000,2481

856,385,155 1,053,264,227 1,909,649,382
Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Due to related companies

72,547,373
213,786,131

72,547,373
213,786,131

286,333,504 286,333,504

2020

Assets

Investments - others
Trade and other receivables
Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

484,587,012 484,587,012
9,894,429

349,584,288
357,481,326

9,894,429
349,584,288
357,481,326

484,587,012 716,960,043 1,201,547,055
Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Due to related companies

62,413,593
64,280,348

62,413,593
64,280,348

126,693,941126,693,941
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1
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

I 25 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis - cont'd

Group

I Financial

assets and

liabilities at

amortized cost

I
2021

1 TotalFVTOCI

G$G$ G$

Assets

)
Investments - others

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

856,385,155

16,642,589

360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

856,385,155

16,642,589

360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

I
I

1 856,385,155 1,230,185,949 2,086,571,104

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Bank overdraft (secured)

Taxes payable

328,904,602

16,250,928

208,002,847

21,097,723

328,904,602

16,250,928

208,002,847

21,097,723.  1
574,256,100 574,256,100

I

2020

Assets

Investments - others

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

484,587,012 484,587,012

10,837,124

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688,317

10,837,124

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688,317

484,587,012 927,260,123 1,411,847,135
Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Taxes payable
Bank overdraft (secured)

184,421,005

33,540,159

26,443,206

193,811,687

184,421,005

33,540,159

26,443,206

193,811,687

438,216,057438,216,057
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26 Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.1
IFRS 13 requires fair value of assets and liabilities to be determined based on the following hierarchy:

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3

based on the degree to which the value is observable.

Company and Group
20202021

Carrying
Value

FairIFRS 13

Level

IFRS 13

Level
Carrying
Value

Fair

ValueValue

G$ G$G$ G$
I

2 2 484,587,012 484,587,012856,385,155 856,385,155FVTOCl

1 Groupi

20202021

IFRS 13

Level

IFRS 13 Carrying
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair Fair

LevelValue Value

G$G$ G$ G$

3 357,126,569 57,126,569 86,804,550 86,804,550Property, plant and equipment

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

(a) Fair values of investments were detennined based on quoted prices on the local stock exchange,

(b) Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss. P.P.E was revalued on

August 3,1991 by directors at current market value and March 29, 2014 at current market value by senior valuation officer Peter Green. Significant

management Judgement is involved in the selection of depreciation rates and impairment assessment.

I

i

Fair value measurements stated for disclosure purposes

The following table details the carrying cost of assets and liabilities and their fair values for disclosure purposes.I

Company
2021 2020

IFRS 13

Level
Carrying
Value

Fair IFRS 13 Carrying
Value

Fair
Value Level Value

G$ G$ G$ G$
Assets

Investment properties

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies

Cash on hand and at bank

3 905,084,500

164,797,429

753,349,300

22,000,248

905,084,500

164,797,429

753,349,300

22,000,248

3 901,152,488

9,894,429

349,584,288

357,481,326

901,152,488

9,894,429

349,584,288

357,481,326

2 2
2 2
I 1

1,851,036,942 1,618,112,5311,851,036,942 1,618,112,531

Liabilities

2Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

72,547,373

213,786,131

62,413,593

64,280,348

272,547,373

213,786,131

62,413,593

64,280,348
2 2

286,333.504 126,693,941 126,693,941286,333,504
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26 Fair value estimation - cont'd

1
Fair value measurements stated for disclosure purposes - cont'd

1 Group
2021 2020

IFRS 13

Level
Carrying
Value

Carrying
Value

Fair

Value

Fair

Value

IFRS 13

Level
I

I G$ G$G$ G$

Assets

1 3 905,084,500

179,477,487

360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

3 901,152,488

121,937,822

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688,317

Investment properties
Investment in associate

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

905,084,500

179,477,487

360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

901,152,488

121,937,822

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688,317

3 3

2 2

I 2 2

1 1

2,298,105,347 2,298,105,347 1,939,513,309 1,939,513,309I1

Liabilities

I 2 328,904,602

16,250,928

208,002,847

328,904,602

16,250,928

208,002,847

2 184,421,005

33,540,159

193,811,687

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Bank overdraft (secured)

184,421,005

33,540,159

193,811,687

2 2
I

1 1

1

553,158,377 553,158,377 411,772,851 411,772,851
I

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value for disclosure purposes1

(a) Investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Significant management judgment is involved in the selection of depreciation rates and impairment assessment.

(b) Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost,

(c) Investment in associate is carried at cost and stated using the equity method in the Company's and Group's financial statements respectively,

(d) The fair value of trade and other receivables is based on expected realisation of outstanding balances taking into account the Company and Group'*
history with respect to delinquencies.

(e) Assets and liabilities where the carrying amounts are equal to fair value:- due to their short-term maturity, the carrying value of certain assets anc
liabilities approximates their fair values. These include taxes recoverable/payable, amounts due by/to related companies, trade and other payables
cash on hand and at bank and bank overdraft.
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'1
27 Financial risk management

Objectivesr
1

Company's and Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company and Group throughThe

internal risk reports which analyze exposures by degree and magnitude of risks

1 The Company and Group seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by the use of techniques that are governed by management's policies on foreign

exchange risk.

The Company's and Group's management reports monthly to the Board of Directors on matters relating to risk and management of risk.1
(a) Market risk

The Company’s and Group's activities expose it to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company1
interest rate sensitivity and exposure limits to financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk.and Group uses

There has been no change in the Company's and Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages these risks.1
(i) Foreign currency risk

1 at 31 December include the following assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated in Guyana DollarThe financial statements as

equivalent:
Group

1 2021 2020

G$ G$

Liabilities

1 85,342,476 77,099,348US Dollar

77,099,34885,342,476Net liabilities

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the Guyana dollar against balances denominated in foreign

currencies.'1
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a

1% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number indicates an increase in profit where foreign currencies strengthen 1% against the G$. For a

1% weakening of the foreign currencies against G$ there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below would be

negative.

Company Group
2020 2021 20202021
G$ G$G$ G$

853,425 770,993Loss
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(a) Market risk - cont'd

(ii) Interest sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end

of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period. A 50

basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rates internally to key management

personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonable possible change in interest rates.

A positive number indicates an increase in profits where the interest rate appreciated by 50 basis

points.
For a decrease of 50 basis points in the interest rate, this would have an equal and opposite impact on

profit and the balances below would be negative. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the impact on the Company's and Group's profit

would have been:

Impact on profit for the yearIncrease /

Decrease in

Basis Point GroupCompany
2021 20202021 2020

G$G$G$ G$

(1,040,014) (969,058)+/-50Overdrafts

Apart from the foregoing with respect to the other financial assets and liabilities, it was not possible

to determine the expected impact of a reasonable possible change in interest rates on profit or equity

as other factors such as credit risks, market risks, political and disaster risks can affect the value of
assets and liabilities.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in

market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security or its
issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. Management continually identifies,

underwrites and diversifies risk in order to minimize the total cost of carrying such risk.
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(a) Market risk - cont'd

(iv) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Company and Group are exposed to various risks that are associated with the effects of variations in interest rates. This
impacts directly on its cash flows.

The Company's and Group's management continually monitors and manages these risks through the use of appropriate tools and
implements relevant strategies to hedge against any adverse effects.

Company
Maturing 2021

Within
1 year

Interest
rate

range

Within
2-5 years

Over
5 years

Non-interest
bearing Total

G$ G$ G$ G$ G$
Assets

I 856,385,155
164,797,429

Investments - others
Trade and other receivables
Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

856,385,155
164,797,429
753,349,300

22,000,248

10% 753,349,300
22,000,248

753,349,300 1,043,182,832 1,796,532,132

Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Lease liability
Taxes payable
Due to related companies

72,547,373 72,547,373
5,539,862

11,585,845
213,786,131

8% 1,646,493 3,893,369
11,585,845

10% 213,786,131

215,432,624 3,893,369 84,133,218 303,459,211

Interest sensitivity gap 537,916,676 (3,893,369) 534,023,307
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(a) Market risk - cont'd

(iv) Interest rate risk - cont'd

Company1 Maturing 2020

Interest

rate

range

Within

1 year

Non-interest

bearing

Within

2 to 5 years

Over

5 years●1 Total
G$ G$ G$ G$G$

I Assets

Investments - others
Trade and other receivables
Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

484,587,012
9,894,429

484,587,012
9,894,429

349,584,288
357,481,326

1 10% 349,584,288
357,481,326

1 349,584,288 851,962,767 1,201,547,055

1 Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Lease liability
Due to related companies
Taxes payable

62,413,593 62,413,593
48,143,144
64,280,348
11,120,262

1 8% 792,280
64,280,348

4,609,484 42,741,380
10%

11,120,262

1 65,072,628 4,609,484 42,741,380 73,533,855 185,957,347

Interest sensitivity gap 284,511,660 (4,609,484) (42,741,380) 237,160,796
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(a) Market risk - cont'd

(iv) Interest rate risk - cont'd
Group

Maturing 2021

Non-interest

bearing

Within

I year

Within

2-5 years

Over

5 years

Interest
Totalrate
G$G$G$ G$ G$range

Assets

856,385,155

16,642,589

360,332,896

856,385,155

16,642,589

360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

Investments - others

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies

Cash on hand and at bank

10% 756,919,739

96,290,725

1,329,651,365 2,086,571,104756,919,739

Liabilities

328,904.602 328,904,602

16,250,928

5,539,862

21,097,723

208,002,847

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Lease liability

Taxes payable
Bank overdraft (secured)

16,250,928

1,646,493

10%

3,893,3698%

21,097,723

208,002,8478.5%

350,002,325.00225,900,268 3,893,369 579,795,962

531,019,471 (3,893,369) 527,126,102Interest sensitivity gap

Group

Maturing 2020
Within

1 year

Within

2-5 years

Over Non-interest

bearing5 years Total

G$ G$ G$ G$ G$

Assets

484,587,012

10,837,124

185,808,512

484,587,012

10,837,124

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688,317

Investments - others

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

10% 349,926,170
9% 380,688,317

349,926,170 1,061,920,965 1,411,847,135

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Lease liability

Taxes payable

Bank overdraft (secured)

184,421,005 184,421,005

33,540,159

48,143,144

26,443,206

193,811,687

10% 33,540,159

792,2808% 4,609,484 42,741,380
26,443,206

9% 193,811,687

228,144,126 210,864,211 486,359,2014,609,484 42,741,380

121,782,044Interest sensitivity gap 74,431,180(4,609,484) (42,741,380)
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(b) Liquidity riskI
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its commitments associated
with financial instruments.

I
The Group manages its liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of resources in liquid or near liquid form.

I
The following table shows the distribution of liabilities by maturity:

I Company

Maturing 2021
Within

1 year

Within Over

5 yearsI 2 to 5 years Total
G$ G$ G$ G$

I Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Lease liability

Taxes payable

Due to related companies

72,547,373

1,646,493

11,585,845

213,786,131

72,547,373

5,539,862

11,585,845

213,786,131

I 3,893,369

I 299,565,842 3,893,369 303,459,211

1 Maturing

2020

Within

1 year

Within

2 to 5 years

Over

5 yearsI Total
G$ G$ G$ G$

Liabilities

I Trade and other payables

Lease liability

Due to related companies

Taxes payable

62,413,593

792,280

64,280,348

11,120,262

62,413,593

48,143,144

64,280,348

11,120,262

4,609,484 42,741,380

1
138,606,483 4,609,484 42,741,380 185,957,3471

I
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(b) Liquidity risk - cont'd

1
Group

Maturing

1 2021

Within

1 year

Within

2 to 5 years

Over

5 years Total

I
i

G$ G$ G$ G$

LiabilitiesII
Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Lease liability

Taxes payable

Bank overdraft (secured)

328,904,602

16,250,928

1,646,493

21,097,723

208,002,847

328,904,602

16,250,928

5,539,862

21,097,723

208,002,847

I
3,893,369

1
575,902,593 3,893,369 579,795,962

1
Maturing1 2020

Within

1 year

Within

2 to 5 years

Over

5 years Total1 G$ G$ G$

1 Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Lease liability

Taxes payable
Bank overdraft (secured)

184,421,005

33,540,159

792,280

26,443,206

193,811,687

184,421,005

33,540,159

48,143,144

26,443,206

193,811,687

I
4,609,484 42,741,380

I
439,008,337 4,609,484 42,741,380 486,359,201
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27 Financial risk management - cont'd

(c) Credit risk

customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company and1-1 Credit risk is the risk that a

Group.

The Comnanv and Group faces credit risk in respect of its cash and cash equivalents, investments and receivables.

However,^Ihis risk is controlled by close monitoring of these assets by the Company and Group. The maximum credit ns ■ a y

Company and Group is the balance reflected in the financial statements.

JI

I

Cash and cash equivalents are held by commercial banks. Tliese banks have been assessed by the Directors as being credit worthy, with very

strong capacity to meet their obligations as they fall due. The related risk is therefore considered very low.

for which the likelihood of default are considered minimal by the Directors.
Investments reflected in the Company and Group are assets

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable on a regular basis.I
table below shows the Company and Group's maximum exposure to credit riskThe

Ij  ‘
GroupCompany

Maximum ExposureMaximum Exposure
202020211 20202021
G$G$G$G$

1 380,688,31796,290,725357,481,32622,000,248
Cash at bank

Invesiments 856,385,155

756,919,739

198,443,353

484,587,012

349,926,170

182,172,212

1,397,373,711

484,587,012

349,584,288
9,894,429

1,201,547,055

856,385,155

753,349,300

8,697,429

1,640,432,132

- others

Due by related companies
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments
Total credit risk exposure

I
1,908,038,972

I GroupCompany
2020202120202021
G$G$G$G$

I
182,172,212

10,837,124

349,926,170

198,443,353

16,642,589

756,919,739

9,894,4298,697,429

5,805,465

753,349,300

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments

Tax recoverable

Due by related companies
1 349,584,288

542,935,506972,005,681359,478,717767,852,194

I
The above balances are classified as follows.

91,400,44191,400,44128,452,10328,452,103

I Current

451,535,065880,605,240331,026,614739,400,091Past due but not impaired

542,935,506972,005,681359,478,717767,852,194

I/
Ageing of trade and other receivables and related
companies balances which were past due but not

impaired;1
85,996,74785,996,74737,000,000 37,000,000120-180 days

365,538,318794,608,493702,400,091 294,026,614I 180+ days

451,535,065880,605,240739,400,091 331,026,614

1
While the foregoing is past due, they are still considered to be collectible in full.
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28 Segment reporting

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

J f'1
Principal activities are as follows:
The Group is currently organized into two business segments - services and trading.

This is the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

I Principal activities are as follows:

Services:

This includes the rental of properties and investment in short and long term securities by the subsidiary company.-1
Trading:

The selling and distribution of branded products.

-1 2021
Services Trading Eliminations Total
G$ G$ G$ G$

‘1 Statement of income

6,191,093,128
5,106,216,694

Third party revenues
Cost of sales

6,191,093,128
5,106,216,694

I
1,084,876,434 1,084,876,434

I 37,116,034 570,587,557

176,010,107
Administrative expenses

Selling costs

607,703,591

176,010,107

37,116,034 746,597,664 783,713,698

I
(37,116,034)Profit/(loss) on operating activities 338,278,770 301,162,736

I 118,330,416

24,525,552

3,382,443

(17,590,416)Rent received

Other income

Share of associate profit

100,740,000

48,229,052

3,382,443

23,703,500

I 146,238,411 23,703,500 (17,590,416) 152,351,495

109,122,377Profit before interest and tax 361,982,270 (17,590,416) 453,514,231

I
25,155,997 (15,977,444)Finance income/(cost) 9,178,553

134,278,374I (17,590,416)346,004,826Profit before tax 462,692,784

(176,385,031)Taxation

I Profit after tax 286,307,753
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28 Segment reporting - cont'd
*li

2021
TotalServices EliminationsTrading
G$G$ G$G$I Segment Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible asset

Investment properties

Investments - subsidiary

- others

Investment in associate

I 57,126,569

2,692,621

57,126,569

2,692,621

905,084,500905,084,500

103,675,000

856,385,155

179,477,487

I (103,675,000)

856,385,155

179,477,487

I (103,675,000)2,044,622,142 59,819,190 2,000,766,332

Current assets

Inventories

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

1 525,795,145

10,837,124

195,535,467

3,570,439

74,290,477

525,795,145

16,642,589

360,332,896

756,919,739

96,290,725

5,805,465

164,797,429

753,349,300

22,000,248I
945,952,442 810,028,652 1,755,981,094I

869,847,842 (103,675,000)2,990,574,584 3,756,747,426Total assets

1 Segment Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

1 3,893,369

(9,109,069)
Lease liability

Deferred tax

3,893,369

26,366,87535,475,944

I 35,475,944Total non-current liabilities (5,215,700) 30,260,244

I1. Current liabilities

72,547,373

213,786,131
Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Lease liability

Taxes payable

Bank overdraft (secured)

256,357,229

(197,535,203)

1,646,493

9,511,878

208,002,847

328,904,602

16,250,928

1,646,493

21,097,723

208,002,847

I
11,585,845

I
297,919,349 277,983,244 575,902,593

I 333,395,293Total liabilities 272,767,544 606,162,837

/' -●
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I 28 Seament reporting - cont'd

2020
Services Trading Eliminations Total
GS G$ GS G$

Statement of income

1 Tliird party revenues
Cost of sales

5.893.870.593

4.882.499.188
5.893.870.593

4,882,499.188

1.011,371.405 1.on.371,405

1 Admimstrative expenses

Selling costs
39.452.132 525.652.729

153.075.628t

565,104,861

153,075,628

39.452.132 678.728.357 718.180.489

I Profit on operating activities (39.452.132) 332.643.048 293,190.916

Rent received

Other Income

Share of associate profit

127.651.586

10.813,843

4,022,221

(17,388.186) 110,263,400

31.877.405

4,022,221

21.063,562

142,487,650 21,063,562 (17,388.186) 146,163.026

Profit before interest and tax 103,035.518 353,706,610 (17.388.186) 439,353.942

Finance income/(cost) 37,338,026 (17,589,915) 19,748.111

Profit before tax 140,373,544i 336,116,695 (17.388.186) 459,102.053

Taxation (170,059.043)

Profit after tax 289.043.010

Segment Assets 2020

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties
Investments - subsidiary

- others

Investment in associate

86,804,550

4,970.993
86,804,550

4.970.993

901,152.488901,152,488
103,675.000

484,587,012

121,937.822

(103.675.000)

484.587,012

121.937,822

1,611,352,322 91,775,543 (103,675.000) 1,599.452.865

Current assets

556,138,678

10.837,124

175,914,083

341,882

23,206,991

Inventories

Tax recoverable

Trade and other receivables

Due by related companies
Cash on hand and at bank

556,138,678

10,837.124

185,808,512

349,926,170

380,688.317i

9,894,429

349,584,288

357,481.326

716,960,043 766.438.7581 1,483.398,801

2,328,312,365Total assets 858,214,301 (103,675,000) 3,082,851.666

Segment Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Lease liability

Deferred tax
47,350,864

(11,338,935)
47,350.864

25.917.84037,256,775

37.256.775 36,011,929 73.268.704

Ti.rrpnt liabilities

Trade and other payables

Due to related companies

Lease liability

Taxation

Bank overdrafi (secured)

62,413,593

64,280,348
122,007,412

(30,740,189)

792,280

15,322,944

193,811,687

184,421,005

33,540,159

792,280

26,443,206

193.81 1.6871

11,120,262

137,814.203 301,194,134 439,008,337

175,070.978 512,277.041Total liabilities 337,206.063
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NOTES ON THE ACCOUNTS

28 Segment reporting - cont'd
J

The Group's revenue comprises of sales to various customers. During the reporting period no one customer provided revenue of 5%
or more.

The Group's revenue and income from investments are derived locally.

29 Capital risk management

The Company and Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The overall strategy remains unchanged from 2020.

The capital structure of the Company and Group consists of cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders, comprising

issued capital, reserves and accumulated earnings.

Gearing ratio

The Company’s and Group's management reviews the capital structure on an on-going basis. As part of this review, management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Company and Group have not set a target gearing
ratio.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

Company Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
G$ G$ G$ G$

219,325,993

(22,000,248)

197,325,745

112,423,492

(357,481,326)

(245,057,834)

229,793,637

(96,290,725)

133,502,912

Debt(i)

Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt

275,494,990

(380,688,317)

(105,193.327)

2,485.810,480 2,037,439,043 3,150.584,589Equity (ii) 2,570,574,625

0.09:1 0.06:1Debt to equity ratio 0.07:1 0.11:1

0.08:1Net debt to equity ratio 0.04:1

(i) Debt is defined as short-term borrowings as detailed in note 21, along with the loan from related companies as stated in note 20,

and lease liability as disclosed in note 24.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company and Group.

30 Capital commitments

The group has invested in a project for the construction of an office and warehouse for Value 4 U Inc and Bounty Farm Limited
amounting to G$700,000,000.

The group has purchased the land and building at Lot 129 Regent Road Bourda, Georgetown and has a balance of G$ 156,100,000

be paid in five equal installments each of G$31,220,000.

to

31 Pending litigation

There is no pending litigation against the Company and the Group.

32 Approval of financial statements

financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 28. 2022.The
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